
RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
SACRAMENTO, CA 
December 14, 2018 

8:30 A.M. 
AGENDA 

1633 Garden Highway 
Sacramento, CA  95833 

Any documents related to agenda items that are made available to the Board before the meeting will 
be available for review by the public at: 1633 Garden Highway, Sacramento, CA  95833 

CALL TO ORDER 

SET THE AGENDA 

OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO DIRECTLY ADDRESS THE BOARD ON SUBJECT MATTER 
NOT ON THE AGENDA WITHIN THE JURISDICTION OF THE BOARD. 
(Limit: 3 minutes per person) 

ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION 

1. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES (Action)

A. Regular Meeting – November 9, 2018

2. ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS

A. Treasurer’s Report for November 2018
B. Expenditure Report for November 2018
C. Budget to Actual Report

3. COMMITTEE REPORTS (Information)

A. SAFCA Representatives
B. Executive Committee Meeting (12/5)
C. Special Board Meeting – Interviews (11/30)
D. Finance Committee Meeting (11/14)
E. HCP Ad Hoc Committee and Special Board Meeting (11/14)
F. Operations Committee Meeting and Special Board Meeting (11/16)

4. BOARD BUSINESS (Action/Information)

A. Recognition for Umberto Gutierrez and Ron Peterson for 20-years of service to the District in
2018



B. Authorization for General Manager to Accept Drainage Easements and Quitclaim Existing 
Easements related to the proposed Greenbriar Development Project in the City of Sacramento 
 

C. Approve District Audit for FY 2018-2018 
 

D. District Sponsorship of Creek Week for 2019 
 

E. Compensation adjustment for District Administrative Service Manager for CalPERS Retirement 
Benefit Correction 

 
ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR INFORMATION/DISCUSSION 
 
5. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
A. Regional Flood Control Issues  
B. Flood Season Update 
C.  Corps Natomas Project update 
D.  Plant 1 Spare SMUD Transformer 
E. PG&E Vegetation Management project American River Parkway  
F. Clean Up Coordination by RWQCB in NEMDC Floodway 
G. V Drain Pipe Culvert Replacement 
 

6. PUBLIC OUTREACH REPORT – K. Pardieck 
 
7. DISTRICT COUNSEL’S REPORT 
 
8. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 

 
9. Correspondence/News/Information 

 
10. Closed Session 
 

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 
 Title: General Manager 

 
11. ADJOURN 
 
 



1 
 

RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
ACTION SUMMARY 
SACRAMENTO, CA 
November 9, 2018 

8:00 A.M. 
1633 Garden Highway 
Sacramento, CA  95833 

 

 

Trustees Present:  Smith, Barandas, Harris, Christophel, Burns, Avdis 

President Smith presided at the meeting. 

Public Comments: There were no public comments 

 

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Trustees 

Trustee Burns motioned to approve the minutes, seconded by Trustee Christophel, and carried by a 
unanimous vote. 

2. Administrative Items 
 
A. Treasurer’s Report for October 2018 

Checking:  $    115,629.07 
Money Market: $    218,423.27 
County Treasurer: $ 2,094,736.99  
LAIF:  $ 2,876,065.31 
City Pool A:  $ 2,059,781.64 

 All Treasurer’s reports were included in the board packet. ASM Gutierrez announced that she received 
her requested warrant in the amount of $1 million dollars from the District’s O/M Fund held by the 
County Treasurer. A motion was made by Trustee Harris to approve the Treasurer’s Report with minor 
edits, seconded by Trustee Avdis, all in favor, motion carries. 

3. Committee Reports 
 

A. SACFA  

Trustee Barandas provided a SAFCA update. Natomas Project, Reach D along Natomas Cross Canal, 
contractor is in the process of digging the Vestal Drain and Plant 4 rebuild will begin next year. Reach I 
(Garden Highway/American River section), contractor is waiting for an encroachment permit for a street 
right of way from the City of Sacramento. Work in Reach I will soon begin and is expected to be 
completed by year end. The Corps traffic control plan is being determined and signs will be posted 
detailing lane closures and traffic impacts. Reach H (Natomas East Main Drain Canal levee portion), 
planning to award contract by year end.  



2 
 

At SAFCA’s next Board meeting, discussion of ramp closures along Garden Highway will be held in closed 
session. There will also be two resolutions of necessity for right of way on parcels bordering the Garden 
Highway needed for the Corps levee improvements. The American River WRDA 2016 work, North 
Arcade Creek, Main Avenue Bridge will be completed in late November. Trustee Barandas shared that 
SAFCA is proposing to rent space at the Corp’s office to address questions and situations as they arise in 
an effort to work more efficiently with their staff. 

B. Personnel Committee 

Trustee Fred Harris reported the Personnel Committee discussed several topics - retiree benefits for 
ASM, anti-nepotism policy, GM recruitment, discussed adopting a salary range to the Administrative 
Assistant position, and closed out the meeting with discussion of the GM Desk Procedure manual. A 
copy of the committee meeting minutes was included in the Board packet. 

C. Executive Committee Meeting 

Trustee Jeff Smith reported the Committee met to review the draft Board agenda. The Committee also 
discussed recent developments with the homeless camps and debris in the floodway; flood season 
preparation, and V drain pipe crossing replacement issue. Trustee Smith would like to resolve the drain 
issue by the next Board meeting. A copy of the committee meeting minutes was included in the Board 
packet. 

D. Legal Committee Meeting 

The Legal Committee met to discuss succession planning for the District’s legal counsel. Counsel Jim Day 
will continue to serve the District through 2019. The Board will decide about future counsel 
representation as Mr. Day’s retirement date gets closer. GM Devereux provided an update on some 
existing private improvements that are encroaching into the District’s right of way and interfere with the 
Corp’s proposed NEMDC levee improvements. GM Devereux provided the Committee with an update of 
the erosion site at 7907 Garden Highway. The meeting closed with discussion on the 2019 Board 
election processes. A copy of the committee meeting minutes was included in the Board packet.  

E. Urbanization Committee Meeting 

Trustee Chris Burns provided a Committee meeting update. The Urbanization Committee met on 
November 8. Topics of discussion were the homelessness issue, levee setback policy (200 vs. 500-year 
flood protection considerations), and how the District compensates landowners affected by levee 
setbacks. A Good Neighbor Policy was on the agenda, but the Committee did not have enough time to 
discuss this issue. The committee discussed how District complaints are received/processed/resolved; a 
quarterly report to the Board is being requested by the Committee to better understand what district 
issues are. Also discussed, Encroachment Permits and whether a policy or timeline should be developed 
for appropriate District response time. Trustee Burns reported the River Oaks Community Association 
community group met at the District office. At this meeting, GM Devereux addressed the group and 
mentioned the likelihood of Garden Highway traffic impacts. Trustee Burns would like to see more 
District outreach on this topic. 

4. Board Business  
 

A. Presentation on Sacramento Weir and Yolo Bypass Project and other Regional Flood Control 
Issues by Gary Bardini SAFCA Director of Planning  



3 
 

  Gary Bardini provided an in-depth presentation of the various activities around the region with a 
common goal of achieving 500-year flood protection. He states the next five years will be 
unprecedented with the amount of work involved to complete several projects; the Corps will need local 
assistance to achieve completion. He stated major project elements are fully funded (Folsom Dam raise, 
and, American River Commons Features). Other improvements for additional protection include 
widening the Sacramento Bypass, Yolo Bypass, and expanding the Fremont Weir.  He noted funding for 
the Natomas Project was not included in the recent federal supplemental appropriation that included 
the projects noted above.  However, he assured the Board SAFCA expects federal funds will be available 
for Natomas given the supplemental appropriations removed most of the other projects competing for 
these same funds.  Mr. Bardini spoke about the enormity of projects which will require a regional effort 
as well as state and federal. Together efforts will lead to significant flood protection improvements for 
the region. 

B. Greenbriar Development Project – Proposed Drainage Easements for District 

Mark Rodgers from Wood Rodgers provided information on the proposed additional drainage 
improvements and associated easements to be granted to the District as part of the Greenbriar 
development   He reported that the Phase 1 development is starting. As part of the process RD 1000 has 
three conveyance areas - Lone Tree Canal, a smaller ditch that conveys freeway flow from I-5. Lone Tree 
Canal will be widened with a 3 to 1 side slope on the east side and an access road deeded to RD1000. RD 
1000 operates and maintains a drainage canal that runs parallel to I-5 and joins the Lone Tree Canal at 
the existing box culvert crossing under I-5. Here the drainage canal will be improved with a 3 to 1 side 
slope and will include a paved access road to be shared with SMUD as part of a City recreation trail.   The 
District will share a portion of the easement with SMUD. SMUD will hold a 25 ft. easement for a new 
high voltage (69 KV) line to eventually serve Metro Air Park and the Airport; RD 1000 will be the senior 
easement holder. The easement area will eventually include a City of Sacramento recreation trail as 
noted above which will serve as the District and SMUD’s access. The District operates and maintains a 
small drainage ditch that runs along Highway 99. In this area the existing swale will be better defined 
and there will be shared paved access, but there will not be a need for additional easements for RD 
1000. The interior urban drainage system will be operated and maintained by the City of Sacramento. 
The urban drainage will be collected in a City operated detention basin and discharged into the District’s 
canal system near the southern end of the project. Trustee Christophel inquired whether there are 
significant issues related to protected habitat species. GM Devereux replied that there are some issues 
embedded in the permits with HCP which limit how much and how often canals and ditches can be 
cleaned. Overall the permits were issued with future conservation in mind. The area along the Lone Tree 
Canal will include a buffer between it and the urban area to protect endangered species.  

C. Amend District Anti-Nepotism Policy  

GM Devereux reported the Personnel Committee initiated review of the District’s Anti-Nepotism Policy. 
A copy of the proposed policy was included in the board packet. It was discussed that the revised policy 
is being recommended from a risk management standpoint mitigating potential employment issues and 
insuring fairness in employee relations is in the District’s best interest. The revised policy does not 
permit hiring relatives of current District employees After discussion, a motion was made by Trustee 
Harris to approve the District’s revised Anti-Nepotism Policy, seconded by Trustee Burns, and carried by 
unanimous vote. Trustee Avdis was not present for discussion and did not vote. 

 



4 
 

5.  General Manager’s Report 
 

A. Regional Flood Control Issues 
 
GM Devereux did not have anything new to report on flood control issues. 
 

B. Update on Corps of Engineers Natomas Levee Project 
 
This item was already discussed. 
 

C. Flood Season Outlook and Preparations 
 
Flood season is still considered to be a moderate El Nino; meaning equal chance of wet or dry 
conditions for our area. 
 

D. SCADA Contract Update 
 
A change order may be presented to the Board at the December meeting, but work has been 
initiated on the SCADA improvements. 
 

E. Homeless Camps in Floodways 
 
GM Devereux reports attending a meeting at the request of the Regional Water Quality Control 
Board staff. Area partners discussed individual agency cooperation and resources to assist with 
cleanup of the Natomas East Main Drain Canal floodway and talked about a long-term solution 
to the problem. The regional board would like landowners (such as RD 1000) to take on more 
responsibility for future cleanup. Trustee Avdis made known his desire for the City and County 
to enforce trespass and keep people out of the floodways so that cleanup of encampments is 
not necessary. The Board believes it is imperative to get an agreement in place with partnering 
agencies for future cooperation. 
 

F. Natomas Development Projects 
 

There is a new development in the unincorporated Sacramento County area called “Westside” 
west of the truck stop over to the river along El Centro Road. A proposal to develop this area will 
soon come to the District. 
 

G. District Audit Status 
 
Is moving along and coming to the Finance Committee soon. 
 

H. Encroachment Permits Endorsed 
 

GM Devereux endorsed two Encroachment Permits for an auxiliary structure and fence permit. 
 

I. V Drain Update 



5 
 

 
Staff is responding to request from the property owner Mr. Bob Leal about replacing existing 
pipe crossings in the V Drain.  The District will look into potential cost sharing with the property 
owner. 
 

J. District December Board Meeting Date and Time 
 

GM Devereux suggested setting the annual staff reception with the Board for December 14 
before the Board meeting.  Some Trustees expressed their desire to maintain the lunch option in 
the future 
 

K. Grand Jury review of RD1000 
 

District provided requested publicly available fiscal and O&M information to the Grand Jury.  
 

6.  Public Outreach Update 

A verbal update of Public Outreach activities was provided by K. Pardieck. 

7. District Counsel’s Report 

Counsel Jim Day provided a verbal update of his work during the month of October 2018. 

8.  Superintendent’s Report 

               A copy of the Superintendent’s report was included in the October Board packet.  

9.  Correspondence/New/Information 

               None. 

10. Closed Session 
PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 
Title: General Manager 
 
The Board met in closed session and selected five candidates to interview for the general 
manager position. 
 

11. Adjournment 

 

 

 

 

 



TREASURER’S REPORT 
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 2 

 
 
SUBJECT: ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS (Action) 
 
 
A) Treasurer’s Report 
 The Treasurers’ Report for November 2018 is enclosed for your review  
 
B) Expenditure Report 
 The Expenditure report for the month of November 2018 is enclosed for your review 
 
C) Budget to Actual Report 
 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
A) Review and approve the Treasurers’ Report. 
 
B) Signing of the Expenditure Reports is Board approval of the Expenditure Report. 
 
 
 

 



Reclamation District 1000
Treasurer's Report
November 2018

Treasurer's Report for November 2018

November 2018
Total Funds 7,011,673.40

Bank of the West - Checking 86,342.87
Bank of the West - Money Market 243,408.59
Sacramento County Treasurer 1,096,074.99
State Treasurer - Local Agency Investment Fund 3,526,065.31
City of Sacramento - Pool A 2,059,781.64

November 2018 - Operations and Maintenance Cash Flow
Beginning Balance 2,204,877.82

Income Expense

Transfer from money market account 325,000.00 325,000.00
Transfer from Sac. Co. Treasurer to money market account (1,000,000.00) (1,000,000.00)
Accounts Payable* (260,907.56) (260,907.56)
Payroll (86,552.40) (86,552.40)

Ending Balance 1,182,417.86
*See Attached Check Register



 12:06 PM

 12/04/18

 Accrual Basis

 Reclamation District No. 1000

 Transactions by Account
 As of November 30, 2018

Type Date Num Name Memo Debit Credit Balance

Cash and Investments 108,802.83

1010.00 · Bank of the West Checking Acct 108,802.83

General Journal 11/01/2018 11/5/18 payroll 27,333.90 81,468.93

General Journal 11/01/2018 11/5/18 payroll 11,493.26 69,975.67

General Journal 11/01/2018 11/5/18 payroll 91.50 69,884.17

General Journal 11/01/2018 11/5/18 payroll, #10027 586.60 69,297.57

General Journal 11/01/2018 11/5/18 payroll, #10028 207.78 69,089.79

Bill Pmt -Check 11/01/2018 EFT Comcast 324.43 68,765.36

Check 11/01/2018 40207 Bryan Hall 150.00 68,615.36

Bill Pmt -Check 11/01/2018 40208 City of Sacramento 204.28 68,411.08

Bill Pmt -Check 11/01/2018 40209 County of Sacramento 898.00 67,513.08

Check 11/01/2018 40210 Donald Caldwell 150.00 67,363.08

Bill Pmt -Check 11/01/2018 40211 Neat Freak Clean, LLC 350.00 67,013.08

Check 11/01/2018 40212 Raymond Lewis 150.00 66,863.08

Bill Pmt -Check 11/01/2018 40213 SGS Colusa 66,225.85 637.23

Bill Pmt -Check 11/01/2018 40214 Smile Business Products 221.80 415.43

Check 11/01/2018 40215 Tony Del Castillo 150.00 265.43

Bill Pmt -Check 11/01/2018 40216 United Rentals 100.27 165.16

Bill Pmt -Check 11/05/2018 EFT Verizon 322.72 -157.56

Transfer 11/07/2018 Funds Transfer 125,000.00 124,842.44

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40217 A T.E.E.M. Electrical Engineering, Inc. 4,070.00 120,772.44

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40218 Airgas NCN 363.58 120,408.86

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40219 Brookman Protection Services, Inc. 7,800.00 112,608.86

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40220 Carson Landscape Industries 615.00 111,993.86

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40221 Interstate Oil Company 2,709.08 109,284.78

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40222 Main Street Motors 170.25 109,114.53

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40223 Marine Biochemists 8,500.00 100,614.53

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40224 Miles Treaster & Associates 7,453.58 93,160.95

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40225 Sacramento County Utilities 227.40 92,933.55

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40226 Steve Yaeger Consulting 3,200.00 89,733.55

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40228 Valley Truck & Tractor Company 313.23 89,420.32

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40229 Yolo County Public Works 1,055.60 88,364.72

Bill Pmt -Check 11/07/2018 40227 US Bank Corp 748.36 87,616.36

Bill Pmt -Check 11/08/2018 EFT Berkshire Hathaway Homestate Companies 2,600.72 85,015.64

Check 11/08/2018 EFT Cal Pers 8,032.26 76,983.38

Check 11/08/2018 EFT Cal Pers 500.00 76,483.38

Check 11/08/2018 EFT Cal Pers 7,781.02 68,702.36

Check 11/08/2018 EFT Cal Pers 1,777.58 66,924.78

Check 11/08/2018 EFT Cal Pers 1,495.75 65,429.03

Bill Pmt -Check 11/08/2018 EFT Napa Auto Parts 247.37 65,181.66

Bill Pmt -Check 11/08/2018 EFT PG&E 15.88 65,165.78

Bill Pmt -Check 11/08/2018 EFT Waste Management of Sacramento 478.17 64,687.61

Bill Pmt -Check 11/09/2018 EFT City of Sacramento 4.38 64,683.23

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40238 Montage Enterprises 1,660.43 63,022.80

Check 11/14/2018 40231 ACWA 1,639.09 61,383.71

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40232 AT&T 273.20 61,110.51

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40233 Blankinship & Associates, Inc. 2,122.11 58,988.40

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40234 Chavez, Silva & Company 2,465.00 56,523.40

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40235 Contour Sierra Aebi, LLC 7,716.14 48,807.26

Check 11/14/2018 40236 Great America Financial Services 337.85 48,469.41

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40237 Green Light Termite and Pest 75.00 48,394.41

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40239 On Line Bindery, Inc. 286.86 48,107.55

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40240 SGS Colusa 6,219.25 41,888.30

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40241 Sierra Industries, Inc. 881.89 41,006.41

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40242 Stevens Consulting 5,705.62 35,300.79

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40243 Terrapin Technology Group 550.44 34,750.35

Bill Pmt -Check 11/14/2018 40230 Action Asphalt Maintenance, Inc. 30,650.00 4,100.35

 Page 1 of 2



 12:06 PM

 12/04/18

 Accrual Basis

 Reclamation District No. 1000

 Transactions by Account
 As of November 30, 2018

Type Date Num Name Memo Debit Credit Balance

General Journal 11/16/2018 Devereux vacation payroll 2,707.31 1,393.04

General Journal 11/16/2018 Devereux vacation payroll 810.57 582.47

General Journal 11/16/2018 Devereux vacation payroll 60.00 522.47

Bill Pmt -Check 11/16/2018 EFT Alhambra & Sierra Springs 41.14 481.33

General Journal 11/19/2018 11/20/18 payroll 29,203.56 -28,722.23

General Journal 11/19/2018 11/20/18 payroll 13,979.92 -42,702.15

General Journal 11/19/2018 11/20/18 payroll 78.00 -42,780.15

Transfer 11/20/2018 Funds Transfer 200,000.00 157,219.85

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40244 Bob Murray & Associates 7,372.72 149,847.13

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40245 Day Carter & Murphy LLP 7,101.25 142,745.88

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40246 Grainger, Inc. 61.46 142,684.42

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40248 Holt of California 352.47 142,331.95

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40249 Interstate Oil Company 2,656.73 139,675.22

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40250 Karen Pardieck 1,800.00 137,875.22

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40251 Mead & Hunt 3,225.96 134,649.26

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40252 Powerplan 365.01 134,284.25

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40254 Streamline 200.00 134,084.25

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40253 SMUD 28,819.96 105,264.29

Bill Pmt -Check 11/20/2018 40247 H.T. Harvey & Associates 3,236.06 102,028.23

Bill Pmt -Check 11/21/2018 EFT Cal Pers 14,498.86 87,529.37

Bill Pmt -Check 11/21/2018 EFT The Home Depot 374.08 87,155.29

Bill Pmt -Check 11/27/2018 EFT PG&E 256.52 86,898.77

Bill Pmt -Check 11/28/2018 EFT City of Sacramento 43.97 86,854.80

Bill Pmt -Check 11/28/2018 EFT City of Sacramento 131.79 86,723.01

Bill Pmt -Check 11/28/2018 EFT Verizon 380.14 86,342.87

Total 1010.00 · Bank of the West Checking Acct 325,000.00 347,459.96 86,342.87

Total Cash and Investments 325,000.00 347,459.96 86,342.87

TOTAL 325,000.00 347,459.96 86,342.87

Total payroll disbursements 86,552.40

Total accounts payable disbursements 260,907.56

Total disbursements 347,459.96

 Page 2 of 2



Reclamation District No. 1000

Budget to Actual Comparison

July 1, 2018 to November 30, 2018 (Five Months Ending of Fiscal 2019)

Year to Date

July 1, 2018 Percent of

to November 30, 2018 Budget Budget

Operation & Maintenance Income

Property Assessments 81                                                    2,250,000            0.00%

Rents 9,935                                               20,000                 49.68%

Interest Income 33,602                                             50,000                 67.20%

SAFCA - O/M Assessment -                                                      1,400,000            0.00%

Misc Income 37                                                    -                           Not Budgeted

Gain on Capital Asset Disposal 6,400                                               -                           Not Budgeted

Total 50,055                                             3,720,000            1.35%

Restricted Fund

Metro Airpark Groundwater Pumping -                                                      22,000                 0.00%

Total Combined Income 50,055                                             3,742,000            1.34%

Operations and Maintenance - Expense

Administration

Government Fees/Permits 3,365                                               12,000                 28.04%

Legal 28,818                                             100,000               28.82%

Liability/Auto Insurance 108,208                                           110,000               98.37%

Office Supplies 1,951                                               5,500                   35.47%

Computer Costs 9,918                                               17,000                 58.34%

Accounting/Audit 20,539                                             45,000                 45.64%

Admin. Services 7,777                                               17,000                 45.75%

Utilities (Phone/Water/Sewer) 7,656                                               22,000                 34.80%

Mit. Land Expenses 2,592                                               3,000                   86.40%

Administrative Consultants 28,591                                             52,000                 54.98%

Assessment/Property Taxes (SAFCA - CAD) 6,864                                               6,350                   108.09%

Admin - Misc./Other Expenses 2,498                                               5,000                   49.96%

Memberships 31,014                                             30,000                 103.38%

Office Maintenance & Repair 4,765                                               24,000                 19.85%

Payroll Service 823                                                  3,000                   27.43%

Public Relations 13,694                                             40,000                 34.24%

Small Office & Computer Equipment -                                                      5,000                   0.00%

Sub Total 279,073                                           496,850               56.17%

Personnel/Labor

Wages 341,178                                           1,000,000            34.12%

Group Insurance 44,246                                             130,000               34.04%

Worker's Compensation Insurance 19,227                                             40,000                 48.07%

OPEB - ARC 33,922                                             28,000                 121.15%

Dental/Vision/Life 9,835                                               26,000                 37.83%

Payroll Taxes 24,719                                             77,500                 31.90%

Pension 65,861                                             165,000               39.92%

Continuing Education 1,664                                               15,000                 11.09%

Trustee Fees 11,250                                             39,000                 28.85%

Sub Total 551,902                                           1,520,500            36.30%



Operations

Power 141,231                                           500,000               28.25%

Supplies/Materials 5,819                                               22,000                 26.45%

Herbicide 87,787                                             115,000               76.34%

Fuel 19,582                                             65,000                 30.13%

Field Services 4,361                                               142,000               3.07%

Field Operations Consultants 5,771                                               20,000                 28.86%

Equipment Rental 100                                                  10,000                 1.00%

Refuse Collection 4,025                                               25,000                 16.10%

Equipment Repair/Service 338                                                  22,000                 1.54%

Equipment Parts/Supplies 34,633                                             60,000                 57.72%

Facility Repairs 1,072                                               273,000               0.39%

Shop Equipment (not vehicles) 409                                                  9,000                   4.54%

Field Equipment -                                                      8,000                   0.00%

Misc/Other 2 1,167                                               -                           Not Budgeted

Sub Total 306,295                                           1,271,000            24.10%

Equipment

Equipment 146,908                                           150,000               97.94%

Sub Total 146,908                                           150,000               97.94%

Consulting/Contracts/Memberships

Engineering/Technical Consultants 66,934                                             250,000               26.77%

Security Patrol 27,000                                             80,000                 33.75%

Sub Total 93,934                                             330,000               28.46%

Total O & M Expenses 1,378,112                                        3,768,350            36.57%

Capital Expenses

Capital Office Upgrades 14,907                                             15,000                 99.38%

Capital RE Acquisition 5,500                                               120,000               4.58%

Capital Office Facility Repair -                                                      30,000                 0.00%

Document Management 2,522                                               8,800                   28.66%

Capital Facilities 54,378                                             715,000               7.61%

Sub Total 77,307                                             888,800               8.70%

Total All Expenditures 1,455,419                                        4,657,150            31.25%



STAFF  
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 3 

 
 
SUBJECT: Committee Reports (Information) 
 

A. SAFCA Representatives – verbal report 
B. Executive Committee Meeting (12/5) 
C. Special Board Meeting – Interviews (11/30) 
D. Finance Committee Meeting (11/14) 
E. HCP Ad Hoc Committee and Special Board Meeting Committee Meeting (11/14) 
F. Operations Committee Meeting and Special Board Meeting (11/16) 

  

 
  
  
  
       

 



Executive Committee Minutes 

December 5, 2018 

In attendance were Trustees Jeff Smith and Tom Barandas and GM Devereux; Trustee Fred 
Harris participated via conference call 
 
There were no members of the public present and therefore no public comments.  
 
GM Devereux reviewed the draft agenda for the December 14 meeting.  Tom Barandas 
reported SAFCA was having their Executive Committee on Thursday so he should have 
information to report.  GM Devereux noted the Board meeting will start late to accommodate a 
holiday breakfast reception with the Board and staff starting at 8:00 am 
 
The Committee had an extended discussion on the spare transformer issue at Plant No. 1 that 
was reported from the Operations Committee.  Trustee Harris wants to make sure the issue is 
fully vetted for the Board to make a final decision on the spare transformer considering our 
public safety mission. He noted the Board will have the second round of GM candidate 
interviews as part of a closed session item at the end of the meeting.  The Committee members 
engaged in a discussion about the format for this second interview.  GM Devereux will reach 
out to our consultant Bob Murray to provide some guidance to the Board.   
 
GM Devereux briefed the Committee on status of the Corps Natomas Levee Project; efforts to 
coordinate a clean up of trash and debris left by homeless in the NEMDC floodway, resolution 
of the Admin Service Manager’s CalPERS benefits and negotiations for pipe crossing 
replacements in the V Drain.  
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned.   
 
  
 
 
 



Finance Committee Meeting 
November 14, 2018 

 
The Finance Committee met on November 14. In attendance was Trustee Thom Gilbert.  
Trustees Jeff Smith and Fred Harris participated by phone.  Staff and consultants attending 
were GM Devereux, ASM Gutierrez, accounting consultant Rob Merritt and auditor Mary Ann 
Cropper.    Chair Gilbert called the meeting to order.   
 
Auditor Mary Ann Cropper started the meeting by stating this year’s audit went very smoothly 
and she appreciated the efforts by staff and our accounting consultant in gathering the 
information necessary for the draft financial statements.  The first item discussed was the 
recent letter from FEMA on the status of funds from the 2006 disaster claim which would 
impact the receivable amount being carried on the District’s books.  However, since the funds 
have not been obligated, staff and the auditor are recommending we make no adjustment to 
the receivable at this time.  The Committee concurred with the recommendation. She then 
focused on the primary change with this year’s audit being implementation of GASB 75 for the 
OPEB benefits.  She noted the District’s current year’s OPEB asset is $44,998 as opposed to 
prior year’s when the financials showed a net OPEB asset of almost $600,000 based on our 
funds in the CERBT Trust.  With this investment, we do not show a significant OPEB liability in 
our financials. Staff intends to continue making a reasonable annual OPEB contribution to the 
trust though there is no formal calculated Annual Require Contribution (ARC); the Committee 
concurred. 
 
Ms. Cropper also discussed the current District’s unfunded pension liability; reviewed the 
budget to actual for revenue and expenditures from last year; and the fund balances.  GM 
Devereux asked if the Committee would like staff to pursue options to potentially pre-fund 
some or all of the District’s unfunded pension liability.  The Committee agreed it would be 
beneficial to consider pre-funding but also need to look at the District’s capital needs. Ms. 
Cropper stated the only recommendation she has is for the District to develop a process for 
integrating FEMA disaster assistance claims into our financial and accounting system.  She 
recommends we book a receivable based on amounts included in our FEMA claims; and adjust 
the receivable annually based on our best estimate of actual funds we expect to receive.  After 
additional questions from Trustees and responses from staff and the auditor; the District 
management team and consultant accountant left the meeting so the Committee members 
could meet independently with the auditor.   
 
After staff returned to the meeting, Trustee Gilbert reported the auditor will provide the 
revised draft audit and supplementary information in sufficient time for the audit to be ready 
for the Board to review at the December meeting.  
 
There being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned. 



Operation Committee and Special Board Meeting Minutes 

November 16, 2018 

The Operations Committee met on November 16.   In attendance at this meeting were Trustees 
Barandas, Smith, Christophel, and Burns representing a quorum of the Board thereby making it 
a Special Board Meeting.  Staff in attendance was General Manager Paul Devereux and District 
consultant Scott Brown.  Mr. Brown provided the members present an update on the 
transformer issues at Plant No. 1.  Currently the three single phase transformers have been 
restored with no spare.  SMUD engineers have determined the existing transformer site cannot 
support a three-phase transformer (and spare) due to space limitations.  Also, trying to upgrade 
the site to a higher voltage would require significant and costly modifications to the plant.  S. 
Brown provided costs to the Board members for options to either purchase or lease a fourth 
spare single phase transformer.  After a number of questions and discussion, Trustee Smith 
asked what the risk would be to not have a spare transformer in light of the backup generator 
installed at Plant 1.   Staff noted even if one transformer fails, the plant can be operated at over 
80% capacity using the two remaining transformers.  With the generator, both plants can be 
operated during an emergency.  After further discussion, the Board members asked staff to do 
some additional sensitivity analysis using the Natomas Basin H&H model to quantify the risk.  
Staff will prepare a memorandum discussing the risk factors and operations for the Board to 
make a decision on a spare transformer at the site.  After this item, S. Brown left the meeting. 

GM Devereux then discussed the status of pipe culvert crossings in the District’s V Drain located 
north of Sankey Road and west of Highway 99.  He noted Caltrans modified the District’s V 
Drain and replaced several existing pipe culverts when the freeway was widened in the 1980’s.  
The record is not clear on whether the pipe replacements were requested by the District or the 
property owner at the time.  One culvert at the V1/V drain intersection failed previously and 
was removed and not replaced by the District.  Two culverts in the V drain are in danger of 
failing (30 years old).  Field staff have indicated replacing the V1/V drain and one of the two V 
drain pipe crossings would benefit our O&M activities, but we do not need both V drain 
crossings replaced.  GM Devereux stated he has discussed this with the property owner Bob 
Leal and tenant farmer John Penning.  Mr. Penning says both V drain crossings are needed for 
his farming operations and he believes they are the District’s responsibility to replace.  After 
discussion, the Board members directed staff to continue negotiations with owner/farmer but 
we should be flexible on replacement since the historical record is not clear who is responsible.  
However, any pipe crossing we determine not be needed for District O&M should be the 
property owner’s responsibility to replace in the future.  In addition the District should reserve 
the right to remove pipe crossings not deemed necessary for its O&M.  Trustee Burns also 
stated we should use this opportunity to work with the land owner to resolve any outstanding 
District right of way issues with the V Drain.   

Being no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned. 



STAFF  
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 4  

 
 
SUBJECT: Board Business (Action/Information) 
 

A. Recognition for Umberto Gutierrez and Ron Peterson for 20-years of service to 
the District in 2018 

B. Authorization for General Manager to Accept Drainage and Quitclaim Existing 
Easements related to the proposed Greenbriar Development Project in the City 
of Sacramento 

C. Approve District Audit for FY 2017-2018 
D. District Sponsorship of Creek Week for 2019 
E. Compensation adjustment for District Administrative Service Manager for 

CalPERS Retirement Benefit Correction 
  
  
  
       

 



 
 
 
 

December 14, 2018 
 
LETTER OF RECOGNITION FOR UMBERTO R. GUTIERREZ FOR TWENTY YEARS 

OF SERVICE TO RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 
 
 
Umberto Gutierrez, the Board of Trustees for Reclamation District 1000 hereby 
recognizes and salutes you for your twenty years of service to the District working to 
protect our residents, property owners, farmers and businesses who rely on your 
professional skills, leadership and dedicated service. 
 
Your career at the District began on March 7, 1998 and you have been part of the 
District team patrolling, monitoring and operating our flood control system during the 
significant flood events in 2006, 2010, and the wettest year on record in 2017. You and 
your family sacrificed much to protect the Natomas Community. In addition, you were an 
integral part of our field crew making sure the levees and drains were ready for each 
flood season especially leading the critical chemical spray program to clear the drains of 
vegetation. While much of your efforts go unrewarded, we want you to know this Board 
does recognize your critical role in our public safety mission and hereby thanks you for 
that effort.  
 
Please accept this letter of recognition as a small token of our appreciation on behalf of 
those whose lives and property you protected for these past twenty years. We look 
forward to your continued service to the District, at least for the short term, and our 
constituents. Once again, thank you for a job well done!! 
 
Reclamation District No. 1000 Board of Trustees: 
 
 

_______________________ _________________________ 
Jeff Smith, President   Tom Barandas, Vice President  
 
_______________________ _________________________ 
Nick Avdis, Trustee   David Christophel, Trustee  
 
_______________________ ________________________ 
Chris Burns, Trustee   Thom Gilbert, Trustee  
 
_______________________     
Fred Harris, Trustee  



 
 
 
 

December 14, 2018 
 

LETTER OF RECOGNITION FOR RONALD D. PETERSON FOR TWENTY YEARS 
OF SERVICE TO RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000 

 
 
Ron Peterson, the Board of Trustees for Reclamation District 1000 hereby recognizes 
and salutes you for your twenty years of service to the District working to protect our 
residents, property owners, farmers and businesses who rely on your professional skills, 
leadership and dedicated service. 
 
Your career at the District began on October 5, 1998 and you have been part of the 
District team patrolling, monitoring and operating our flood control system during the 
significant flood events in 2006, 2010, and the wettest year on record in 2017. You and 
your family sacrificed much to protect the Natomas Community. In addition, you were an 
integral part of our field crew making sure the levees and drains were ready for each 
flood season especially leading the critical chemical spray program to clear the drains of 
vegetation. While much of your efforts go unrewarded, we want you to know this Board 
does recognize your critical role in our public safety mission and hereby thanks you for 
that effort.  
 
Please accept this letter of recognition as a small token of our appreciation on behalf of 
those whose lives and property you protected for these past twenty years. We look 
forward to your continued service to the District, at least for the short term, and our 
constituents. Once again, thank you for a job well done!! 
 
Reclamation District No. 1000 Board of Trustees: 
 
 

_______________________ _________________________ 
Jeff Smith, President   Tom Barandas, Vice President  
 
_______________________ _________________________ 
Nick Avdis, Trustee   David Christophel, Trustee  
 
_______________________ ________________________ 
Chris Burns, Trustee   Thom Gilbert, Trustee  
 
_______________________     
Fred Harris, Trustee  



Item No. 4B 
Greenbriar Development Project City of Sacramento 
Authority to Accept Drainage and Access Easements 

 
 
 
Summary and Recommendation 
 
Staff is recommending the Board authorize the General Manager to accept non-exclusive 
drainage and access easements on behalf of the District in substantial conformance with 
the attached easements, plats and legal descriptions.  These easements will allow for the 
future operations and maintenance of current and future improvements to District 
facilities to mitigate impacts of the proposed Greenbriar Development project on our 
drainage system.  
 
 
Background and Information 
 
Greenbriar Property Owner LP is proposing to develop the property located north and 
west of the intersection of Interstate 5 and Highway 99 in the City of Sacramento known 
as the Greenbriar project.  The owner has worked with the District on a drainage 
masterplan and development agreement to fund improvements to District facilities and 
provide additional compensation to mitigate the impacts of their project on the District’s 
interior drainage facilities.  These have been memorialized in the Funding Agreement by 
and between the City of Sacramento, Greenbriar and RD1000 approved by the Board in 
March 2017. 
 
District staff has been working with representatives of the Greenbriar project on various 
easements and other rights of way issues associated with development of the site.  Last 
month staff along with the developer’s engineering representative Mr. Mark Rodgers 
presented the proposed easements necessary to accommodate the proposed improvements 
and provide for their future operations and maintenance by the District.  We have now 
finalized the plats and legal descriptions for the proposed non-exclusive drainage and 
access easements described below. 
 
Western Boundary 
 
The District currently operates and maintains the Lone Tree Canal which abuts the 
proposed development.  As part of the project, the canal will be widened with a 3 to1 side 
slope on the east side per the District’s standards which will improve our operations and 
maintenance.  The developer will be granting an additional 50 to 70-foot drainage 
easement along the canal which will provide a location for disposal of sediment removed 
from the canal and will also provide a buffer between the urban development and canal 
which is considered GGS habitat.   The Lone Tree Canal then runs south under I-5 
through an existing box culvert and drains into the West Drain Canal. 
 



Southern Boundary 
 
The District operates and maintains a drainage canal that parallels I-5 and joins the Lone 
Tree Canal at the existing box culvert. The developer will grant an additional 35-foot 
easement adjacent to the District’s existing 30-foot drainage easement along the area 
north of I-5 to accommodate improvements to and access along the drain.  The District 
will share the additional easement area with SMUD who is constructing a new high 
voltage utility line in this area that will eventually serve Metro Air Park and Sacramento 
International Airport.  The easement will also eventually include a City recreation trail 
(shared access road for District/SMUD).  Staff is working with the developer, SMUD and 
City on the language for the easement area. 
 
Eastern Boundary 
 
The District operates and maintains a small drainage ditch that runs along Highway 99 
Staff has been working with the developer on additional drainage and access easements 
along this perimeter to facilitate our future operations and maintenance of this ditch.   
 
The District is also working with the developer to quitclaim an existing drainage 
easement in favor of RD 1000 that will not be necessary once the site is developed and 
the urban drainage system constructed.  The urban drainage system will the operated and 
maintained by the City of Sacramento.  The urban drainage will be collected in a City-
operated detention basin and discharged into the District’s canal system near the southern 
end of the project per the approved drainage plan. 
 
Staff is recommending the Board authorize the General Manager to accept the proposed 
non-exclusive drainage and access easements in substantial conformance with the 
attached documents. 
 
 



{00923309} 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

 

NAME Reclamation District No. 1000  
MAILING 
ADDRESS 1633 Garden Highway  

CITY, 
STATE 
ZIP CODE 

Sacramento, CA 95833 
(SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER’S USE) 

 
Documentary Transfer Tax $ - 0 -  
___ Computed on value of interest conveyed. 
___ Computed on value of interest conveyed less liens 
       and encumbrances remaining thereon at time of sale. 
___ No property transfer tax due.   
 
By:        
 

 

 
GRANT OF EASEMENT 

 
 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LP, a Delaware Limited Partnership 
(“Grantor”), hereby grants to RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000, a public entity of the State of 
California created under Cal. Stats. 1911, Chapter 412, its successors and assigns (“Grantee”), a non-
exclusive and perpetual easement for the installation, construction, operation, maintenance and 
replacement of a drainage channel, rocked access road(s) and incidental purposes upon and across that 
certain real property located in the County of Sacramento as described on Exhibit “A” (the “Facility 
Easement”) and shown on Exhibit “B” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  
Grantor covenants and agrees for itself, its successors and assigns, as a covenant running with the land, 
that Grantor will not commence or allow other uses in the Easement Area which may interfere with 
Grantee’s use, operation, maintenance or replacement of its drainage channel, and agrees to provide to 
Grantee an opportunity to reasonably review and approve of any such other uses and to enter into a 
joint use agreement with any such other users within the Easement Area prior to the granting of any 
rights therefore or the commencement of any such other uses.   
 
Dated:     , 2018 
 
THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LP 
a Delaware Limited Partnership 
 
       
 
 
      



{00923309} 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
State of California 

County of       ) 

 
 
 
On ______________________ before me,   
       (insert name and title of the officer) 
 
personally appeared                                     
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the 
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
Signature        (Seal) 
 

 
 
 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document.   



{00923309} 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
State of California 

County of       ) 

 
 
 
On ______________________ before me,   
       (insert name and title of the officer) 
 
personally appeared                                     
capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the 
entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
Signature        (Seal) 
 

 
 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document.   



1116.010 
STV 

Page 1 of 4 
J:\1000-s\1116-Greenbriar-Farms-Integral\GB-Integral-OA\Geomatics\docs\Descriptions\RD-1000\01-LEGAL\GB_RD1000 ESMT-

FACILITIES.docx 
 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 

GREENBRIAR 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR 
FACILITIES EASEMENTS 

All that real property located in the City of Sacramento, County of Sacramento, State of 
California described as follows: 

Being a portion of Lots 93, 94, 95, 96, 98, 124, 127, 128 and 129 of that certain map entitled 
“Map of Natomas Central Subdivision”, filed in Book 16 of Maps, at Page 3, Official Records of 
Sacramento County and situate in Section 33, Township 10 North, Range 4 East, Mount  
Diablo Meridian, more particularly described as follows: 

FACILITY EASEMENT AREA 1 

BEGINNING at the intersection of the north line of said Section 33 with a line being parallel with 
and 90.00 feet (as measured at right angles) easterly of the west line of the northwest quarter of 
said Section 33; thence from said POINT OF BEGINNING, along said parallel line,  
South 00°32'38" East, a distance of 2,692.73 feet; 

thence parallel with and 90.00 feet (as measured at right angles) easterly of the west line of the 
southwest quarter of said Section 33, South 00°24'23" East, a distance of 1,493.86 feet; 

thence South 08°17'14" East, a distance of 310.02 feet; 

thence parallel with and 100.00 feet (as measured at right angles) northerly of the northerly lines 
of that certain parcel of land conveyed to the State of California in a Grant Deed recorded 
August 6, 1965 in Book 5301 of Official Records, at Page 601 the following 3 arcs, courses and 
distances: 

1. South 55°17'47" East, a distance of 94.68 feet; 
2. South 55°50'55" East, a distance of 580.63 feet; 
3. along a tangent curve concave northerly, having a radius of 350.00 feet, easterly 196.65 

feet along said curve through a central angle of 32°11'32"; 

thence South 86°37’16” East, a distance of 50.00 feet; 

thence South 03°22'44" West, a distance of 35.00 feet; 

thence parallel with and 65.00 feet (as measured at right angles) northerly of the northerly line 
of said Grant Deed, South 86°37'16" East, a distance of 55.60 feet; 

thence along a tangent curve concave northwesterly, having a radius of 28.00 feet, 
northeasterly 43.98 feet along said curve through a central angle of 90°00'00"; 

thence North 03°22'44" East, a distance of 22.28 feet; 

thence South 86°37'16" East, a distance of 17.00 feet; 

thence South 03°22'44" West, a distance of 22.28 feet; 



1116.010 
STV 

Page 2 of 4 
J:\1000-s\1116-Greenbriar-Farms-Integral\GB-Integral-OA\Geomatics\docs\Descriptions\RD-1000\01-LEGAL\GB_RD1000 ESMT-

FACILITIES.docx 
 

thence along a tangent curve concave northeasterly, having a radius of 28.00 feet, 
southeasterly 43.98 feet along said curve through a central angle of 90°00'00"; 

thence parallel with and 65.00 feet (as measured at right angles) northerly of the northerly lines 
of said Grant Deed the following four (4) arcs, courses and distances: 

1. South 86°37'16" East, a distance of 282.31 feet; 
2. North 89°45'12" East, a distance of 775.90 feet; 
3. along a tangent curve concave southerly, having a radius of 5,065.00 feet, easterly 

801.55 feet along said curve through a central angle of 09°04'02"; 
4. South 81°10'46" East, a distance of 293.85 feet to an intersection with the northerly 

prolongation of the easterly line of that certain Right-Of-Way conveyed to Reclamation 
District No. 1000 in a Reclamation Right Of Way Deed recorded August 6, 1965 in Book 
5301 of Official Records, at Page 467; 

thence along said prolongation South 67°20'16" East, a distance of 124.52 feet to the northerly 
line of said Right-Of-Way; 

thence along the northerly line of said Right-Of-Way the following eleven (11) arcs, courses and 
distances: 

1. from a radial line which bears South 03°17'32" West, along a non-tangent curve concave 
northerly, having a radius of 1,120.00 feet, westerly 108.06 feet along said curve through 
a central angle of 05°31'42"; 

2. North 81°10'46" West, a distance of 306.86 feet; 
3. along a tangent curve concave southerly, having a radius of 5,030.00 feet, westerly 

796.01 feet along said curve through a central angle of 09°04'02"; 
4. South 89°45'12" West, a distance of 777.01 feet; 
5. North 86°37'16" West, a distance of 440.60 feet; 
6. North 43°30'54" West, a distance of 29.25 feet; 
7. from a radial line which bears South 02°07'36" West, along a non-tangent curve concave 

northerly, having a radius of 400.00 feet, westerly 223.57 feet along said curve through a 
central angle of 32°01'28"; 

8. North 55°50'55" West, a distance of 580.09 feet; 
9. North 54°32'02" West, a distance of 120.81 feet; 
10. North 02°19'21" West, a distance of 332.22 feet; 
11. South 89°45'12" West, a distance of 53.04 feet to the easterly line of that certain 

easement conveyed to Reclamation District No. 1000 on June 25, 1926 in Book 76 of 
Official Records, at Page 388;  

thence along said easterly line, North 00°24'23" West, a distance of 1,493.83 feet; 

thence continuing along said easterly line, North 00°32'38" West, a distance of 2,693.48 feet to 
the northerly line of said Section 33; 

thence along said northerly line, South 89°51'49" East, a distance of 70.00 feet to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING. 

Containing 9.992 acres, more or less. 



1116.010 
STV 

Page 3 of 4 
J:\1000-s\1116-Greenbriar-Farms-Integral\GB-Integral-OA\Geomatics\docs\Descriptions\RD-1000\01-LEGAL\GB_RD1000 ESMT-

FACILITIES.docx 
 

FACILITY EASEMENT AREA 2 

TOGETHER WITH that portion of Lot 98 of said “Map of Natomas Central Subdivision”, 

described as follows: 

BEGINNING at the intersection of that certain course delineated as “N 89°28’29” E 85.20 feet” 

in a Directors Deed recorded in Book 940616 of Official Records, at Page 402, with the westerly 
line of that easement recorded in February 1, 1988 in Book 880201 of Official Records, at Page 
1129, both of said County records; thence from said POINT OF BEGINNING along said 
westerly line, South 00°36'29" East, a distance of 167.44 feet; thence continuing along said 
westerly line, South 04°22'17" West, a distance of 16.27 feet; 

thence North 17°16 '05" West, a distance of 161.80 feet; 

thence North 04°20'58" East, a distance of 10.42 feet; 

thence North 85°39'02" West, a distance of 10.25 feet to the southerly prolongation of the 
westerly line of that certain easement conveyed to Reclamation District No. 1000 in a Director’s 

Deed recorded in Book 760924 of Official Records, at Page 1067, records of said County; 

thence along said prolongation, North 04°46'50" East, a distance of 17.54 feet to the southwest 
corner of said easement; 

thence along the south line of said easement and said “N 89°28’29” E 85.20 feet” course, 

respectively, North 89°29'21" East, a distance of 55.47 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Containing 0.122 acres, more or less. 

FACILITY EASEMENT AREA 3 

TOGETHER WITH that portion of Lots 98 and 124 of said “Map of Natomas Central 

Subdivision”, described as follows: 

BEGINNING at the intersection of the westerly line of said easement per Book 760924 of 
Official Records, at Page 1067 with a line parallel with and 30.00 feet westerly (as measured at 
right angles) of that certain course delineated as “N 00°33’00” W 351.20 feet” in a Director’s 

Deed (Quitclaim) recorded in Book 940615 of Official Records, at Page 401; thence from said 
POINT OF BEGINNING, along said parallel line, North 00°32'08" West, a distance of 352.48 
feet; 

thence North 04°21'50" East, a distance of 340.84 feet; 

thence parallel with and 30.00 feet westerly (as measured at right angles) of the westerly line of 
that certain Grant Deed recorded in Book 680927 of Official Records, at Page 495, said County 
records, North 00°30'39" West, a distance of 560.44 to the south line of that certain easement 
conveyed to the Sacramento Area Sewer District in Book 20090727 of Official Records, at Page 
846, said County records; 

thence along said south line, North 89°07'14" East, a distance of 0.25 feet to the westerly line of 
that certain easement conveyed to Reclamation District No. 1000 in Book 960123 of Official 
Records, at Page 1366, said County records; 

thence along said westerly line, South 00°33'38" East, a distance of 901.32 feet; 



1116.010 
STV 

Page 4 of 4 
J:\1000-s\1116-Greenbriar-Farms-Integral\GB-Integral-OA\Geomatics\docs\Descriptions\RD-1000\01-LEGAL\GB_RD1000 ESMT-

FACILITIES.docx 
 

thence continuing along said westerly line, South 04°20'48" West, a distance of 352.48 feet to 
the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Containing 0.248 acres, more or less. 

See Exhibit 'B', Plat to accompany description, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

END OF DESCRIPTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY WOOD RODGERS, INC 
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 

 



54

LOT 133

16 BM 3

LOT 134

16 BM 3

LOT 135

16 BM 3

LOT 136

16 BM 3

LOT 137

16 BM 3

56

53

30

29

31

L
O

T
 
4
3

1
5
 
M

A
P

S
 
4
2

D

43

44

328   BM   3

328   BM   3

MEISTER WAY

670215 OR 27

8
7
1
2
3
0
 
 
 
 
O

R
 
 
 
 
1
2
7
7

5301 OR 601

29    28

32    33

28     27

33     34

33     34

4       3

32     33

5       4

T

H

E

 

G

R

E

E

N

B

R

I

A

R

 

P

R

O

J

E

C

T

 

O

W

N

E

R

,

 

L

P

2

0

1

0

1

2

1

6

 

O

R

 

9

3

9

± 

± 

± 

GREENBRIAR
RD 1000 EASEMENTS

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO   STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY
DESCRIPTION

LEGEND

    DECEMBER 12, 2018       1116.010      SHEET    OF 7

BUILDING  RELATIONSHIPS ONE PROJECT AT A TIME

3301 C St, Bldg. 100-B Tel 916.341.7760
Fax 916.341.7767Sacramento, CA 95816

1



LOT 133

16 BM 3

LOT 134

16 BM 3

31

L

O

T

 

4

3

1

5

 

M

A

P

S

 

4

2

D

43 44

328   BM   3

MEISTER WAY

670215 OR 27
29    28

32    33

POB

T
H

E
 
G

R
E

E
N

B
R

I
A

R
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
O

W
N

E
R

,
 
L
P

2
0
1
0
1
2
1
6
 
O

R
 
9
3
9

± 

POB

GREENBRIAR
RD 1000 EASEMENTS

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO   STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY
DESCRIPTION

DETAIL
1"=80'

SEE DETAIL
ON SHEET 3

SEE SHEET 3

    DECEMBER 12, 2018       1116.010      SHEET    OF 7

BUILDING  RELATIONSHIPS ONE PROJECT AT A TIME

3301 C St, Bldg. 100-B Tel 916.341.7760
Fax 916.341.7767Sacramento, CA 95816

2



54

56

53

30

N. BAYOU

W

A

Y

328   BM   3

MEISTER WAY

5301 OR 601

32     33

5       4

T
H

E
 
G

R
E

E
N

B
R

I
A

R
 
P

R
O

J
E

C
T

 
O

W
N

E
R

,
 
L
P

2
0
1
0
1
2
1
6
 
O

R
 
9
3
9

± 

GREENBRIAR
RD 1000 EASEMENTS

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO   STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY
DESCRIPTION

DETAIL
1"=80'

SEE SHEET 2

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
4

    DECEMBER 12, 2018       1116.010      SHEET    OF 7

BUILDING  RELATIONSHIPS ONE PROJECT AT A TIME

3301 C St, Bldg. 100-B Tel 916.341.7760
Fax 916.341.7767Sacramento, CA 95816

3



5301 OR 601

THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LP

20101216 OR 939

± 

GREENBRIAR
RD 1000 EASEMENTS

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO   STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY
DESCRIPTION

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
3

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
5

    DECEMBER 12, 2018       1116.010      SHEET    OF 7

BUILDING  RELATIONSHIPS ONE PROJECT AT A TIME

3301 C St, Bldg. 100-B Tel 916.341.7760
Fax 916.341.7767Sacramento, CA 95816

4



5301 OR 601

THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LP

20101216 OR 939

± 

GREENBRIAR
RD 1000 EASEMENTS

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO   STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY
DESCRIPTION

SE
E 

SH
EE

T 
4

    DECEMBER 12, 2018       1116.010      SHEET    OF 7

BUILDING  RELATIONSHIPS ONE PROJECT AT A TIME

3301 C St, Bldg. 100-B Tel 916.341.7760
Fax 916.341.7767Sacramento, CA 95816

5



POB

THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LP

20101216 OR 939

5301 OR 601

± 

GREENBRIAR
RD 1000 EASEMENTS

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO   STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY
DESCRIPTION

SEE SHEET 7

(1) DENOTES  RECORD INFORMATION
PER 940616 OR 0402

    DECEMBER 12, 2018       1116.010      SHEET    OF 7

BUILDING  RELATIONSHIPS ONE PROJECT AT A TIME

3301 C St, Bldg. 100-B Tel 916.341.7760
Fax 916.341.7767Sacramento, CA 95816

6



T
H

E
 
G

R
E

E
N

B
R

I
A

R

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
O

W
N

E
R

,
 
L
P

2
0
1
0
1
2
1
6
 
O

R
 
9
3
9

8
7
1
2
3
0
 
 
 
 
O

R
 
 
 
 
1
2
7
7

± 

T
H

E
 
G

R
E

E
N

B
R

I
A

R

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
O

W
N

E
R

,
 
L

P

2
0

1
0

1
2

1
6

 
O

R
 
9

3
9

±
 

T
H

E
 
G

R
E

E
N

B
R

I
A

R

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
O

W
N

E
R

,
 
L
P

2
0
1
0
1
2
1
6
 
O

R
 
9
3
9

±
 

GREENBRIAR
RD 1000 EASEMENTS

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO   STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY
DESCRIPTION

SEE SHEET 6

DETAIL 'B'
1"-10'

POB

DETAIL 'A'
1"-10'

    DECEMBER 12, 2018       1116.010      SHEET    OF 7

BUILDING  RELATIONSHIPS ONE PROJECT AT A TIME

3301 C St, Bldg. 100-B Tel 916.341.7760
Fax 916.341.7767Sacramento, CA 95816

7



{01052053} 

RECORDING REQUESTED BY AND 

WHEN RECORDED MAIL TO: 

 

NAME Reclamation District No. 1000  
MAILING 
ADDRESS 1633 Garden Highway  

CITY, 
STATE 
ZIP CODE 

Sacramento, CA 95833 
(SPACE ABOVE THIS LINE RESERVED FOR RECORDER’S USE) 

 
Documentary Transfer Tax $ - 0 -  
___ Computed on value of interest conveyed. 
___ Computed on value of interest conveyed less liens 
       and encumbrances remaining thereon at time of sale. 
___ No property transfer tax due.   
 
By:        
 

 

 
GRANT OF EASEMENT 

 
 

FOR VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, the receipt and adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LP, a Delaware Limited Partnership 
(“Grantor”), hereby grants to RECLAMATION DISTRICT NO. 1000, a public entity of the State of 
California created under Cal. Stats. 1911, Chapter 412, its successors and assigns (“Grantee”), a non-
exclusive and perpetual easement for ingress and egress, together with the right to improve and repair 
same with AB and asphalt, upon and across that certain real property located in the County of 
Sacramento as described on Exhibit “A” (the “Access Easement”) and shown on Exhibit “B” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  Grantor covenants and agrees for itself, its successors 
and assigns, as a covenant running with the land, that Grantor will not commence or allow other uses 
in the Easement Area which may interfere with Grantee’s use, operation, maintenance or replacement 
of its drainage channel, and agrees to provide to Grantee an opportunity to reasonably review and 
approve of any such other uses and to enter into a joint use agreement with any such other users within 
the Easement Area prior to the granting of any rights therefore or the commencement of any such other 
uses.   
 
Dated:     , 2018 
 
THE GREENBRIAR PROJECT OWNER, LP 
a Delaware Limited Partnership 
 
       
 
 
       
 



{00923309} 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
State of California 

County of       ) 

 
 
 
On ______________________ before me, 
  
       (insert name and title of the officer) 
 
personally appeared 
 
, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose 
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of 
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
Signature        (Seal) 
 

 
 
 
  

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document.   



{01052053} 

 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
State of California 

County of       ) 

 
 
 
On ______________________ before me, 
  
       (insert name and title of the officer) 
 
personally appeared 
 
, who proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose 
name(s) is/are subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that 
he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their authorized capacity(ies), and that by 
his/her/their signature(s) on the instrument the person(s), or the entity upon behalf of 
which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument.   
 
I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 
foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 
 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal. 
 
 
 
Signature        (Seal) 
 

 
 

A notary public or other officer completing this 
certificate verifies only the identity of the individual 
who signed the document to which this certificate is 
attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or 
validity of that document.   



1116.010 
STV 

Page 1 of 2 
J:\1000-s\1116-Greenbriar-Farms-Integral\GB-Integral-OA\Geomatics\docs\Descriptions\RD-1000\01-LEGAL\GB_RD1000 ESMT-

ACCESS.docx 
 

EXHIBIT ‘A’ 

GREENBRIAR 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION FOR 

ACCESS EASEMENT 

All that real property located in the City of Sacramento, County of Sacramento, State of 
California described as follows: 

Being a portion of Lots 124 and 125 as shown on that certain map titled “Map of Natomas 

Central Subdivision”, filed in Book 16 of Maps, at Page 3, Official Records of Sacramento 

County and situate in Section 33, Township 10 North, Range 4 East, Mount Diablo Meridian, 
more particularly described as follows: 

ACCESS EASEMENT 

COMMENCING at a 3/4" iron pipe set in concrete marking the northwest corner of said Section 
33 and the northwest corner of Lot 129 of said map of Natomas Central Subdivision, and being 
shown on that certain Record of Survey filed January 2, 1974 in Book 30 of Surveys, at Page 
38; thence from said POINT OF COMMENCEMENT, along the west line of the northwest 
quarter of said section 33 as shown on said Record of Survey, South 00°32’38” East, a distance 
of 2693.69 feet to a 3/4" iron pipe set in concrete and being shown on said Record of Survey; 
thence North 88°53’38” West, a distance of 4919.06 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; 
thence from said TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING, North 22°31'37" West, a distance of 75.82 feet 
to the southerly prolongation of the westerly line of that certain sewer easement conveyed to the 
Sacramento Area Sewer District in Book 20090827 of Official Records, at Page 845; thence 
along said prolongation and the westerly and southerly lines of said sewer easement the 
following ten (10) arcs, courses and distances: 

1. North 00°52'46" West, a distance of 740.78 feet; 
2. North 04°33'50" West, a distance of 1,230.49 feet; 
3. along a tangent curve concave to the west, having a radius of 343.24 feet, northerly 

127.59 feet along said curve through a central angle of 21°17'50"; 
4. North 29°35'54" West, a distance of 19.34 feet; 
5. from a radial line which bears North 57°06'32" East, along a non-tangent curve concave 

to the southwest, having a radius of 442.13 feet, northwesterly 340.49 feet along said 
curve through a central angle of 44°07'28"; 

6. North 77°00'55" West, a distance of 222.01 feet; 
7. from a radial line which bears North 12°51'44" East, along a non-tangent curve concave 

to the south, having a radius of 1,014.54 feet, westerly 249.13 feet along said curve 
through a central angle of 14°04'10"; 

8. South 45°08'07" West, a distance of 104.93 feet; 
9. North 89°51'53" West, a distance of 196.45 feet; 
10. North 44°51'53" West, a distance of 186.22 feet;  

thence continuing along said westerly line and the northerly prolongation thereof, 
North 00°08'07" East, a distance of 89.17 feet to the north line of said Section 33; 

thence along said northerly line, South 89°51'49" East, a distance of 28.50 feet;  



1116.010 
STV 

Page 2 of 2 
J:\1000-s\1116-Greenbriar-Farms-Integral\GB-Integral-OA\Geomatics\docs\Descriptions\RD-1000\01-LEGAL\GB_RD1000 ESMT-

ACCESS.docx 
 

thence South 22°19'53" West, a distance of 22.50 feet; 

thence along said northerly prolongation and the northerly and easterly lines of said sewer 
easement the following ten (10) arcs, courses and distances: 

1. South 00°08'07" West, a distance of 60.06 feet; 
2. South 44°51'53" East, a distance of 169.65 feet; 
3. South 89°51'53" East, a distance of 179.88 feet; 
4. North 45°08'07" East, a distance of 104.61 feet; 
5. from a radial line which bears North 01°39'10" West, along a non-tangent curve concave 

to the south, having a radius of 1,034.54 feet, easterly 262.10 feet along said curve 
through a central angle of 14°30'58"; 

6. South 77°00'55" East, a distance of 222.03 feet; 
7. along a tangent curve concave to the southwest, having a radius of 462.13 feet, 

southeasterly 356.47 feet along said curve through a central angle of 44°11'47"; thence 
South 29°35'54" East, a distance of 20.55 feet; 

8. from a radial line which bears North 64°02'04" East, along a non-tangent curve concave 
to the west, having a radius of 363.24 feet, southerly 135.68 feet along said curve 
through a central angle of 21°24'06"; 

9. South 04°33'50" East, a distance of 1,231.13 feet; 
10. South 00°52'46" East, a distance of 714.87 feet to the northerly line of that certain sewer 

easement conveyed to the Sacramento Area Sewer District in Book 20090727 of Official 
Records, at Page 846, said County records; 

thence along said northerly line, North 89°07'14" East, a distance of 8.59 feet; 

thence South 00°30'39" East, a distance of 97.02 feet to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. 

Containing 1.640 acres, more or less. 

See Exhibit 'B', Plat to accompany description, attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

DECEMBER 12, 2018 

END OF DESCRIPTION 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY WOOD RODGERS, INC 
SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 

 



54

LOT 133

16 BM 3

LOT 134

16 BM 3

LOT 135

16 BM 3

LOT 136

16 BM 3

LOT 137

16 BM 3

56

53

30

29

31

L
O

T
 
4
3

1
5
 
M

A
P

S
 
4
2

D

43

44

328   BM   3

328   BM   3

MEISTER WAY

670215 OR 27

8
7
1
2
3
0
 
 
 
 
O

R
 
 
 
 
1
2
7
7

5301 OR 601

29    28

32    33

28     27

33     34

33     34

4       3

32     33

5       4

T

H

E

 

G

R

E

E

N

B

R

I

A

R

 

P

R

O

J

E

C

T

 

O

W

N

E

R

,

 

L

P

2

0

1

0

1

2

1

6

 

O

R

 

9

3

9

GREENBRIAR
RD 1000 EASEMENTS

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO   STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY
DESCRIPTION

LEGEND

DECEMBER 12, 2018       1116.010      SHEET    OF 2

BUILDING  RELATIONSHIPS ONE PROJECT AT A TIME

3301 C St, Bldg. 100-B Tel 916.341.7760
Fax 916.341.7767Sacramento, CA 95816

1



28     27

33     34

THE GREENBRIAR

PROJECT OWNER, LP

20101216 OR 939

8
7
1
2
3
0
 
 
 
 
O

R
 
 
 
 
1
2
7
7

T
H

E
 
G

R
E

E
N

B
R

I
A

R

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
O

W
N

E
R

,
 
L
P

2
0
1
0
1
2
1
6
 
O

R
 
9
3
9

GREENBRIAR
RD 1000 EASEMENTS

CITY OF SACRAMENTO

COUNTY OF SACRAMENTO   STATE OF CALIFORNIA

PLAT TO ACCOMPANY
DESCRIPTION

DETAIL 'A'
1"=80'

DETAIL 'B'
1"=60'

POB ACCESS ESMT

SEE DETAIL 'A'
SHEET 7

(1) DENOTES SASD EASEMENT
PER 20090827 OR 0845

POINT 'A'
POB ACCESS ESMT

DECEMBER 12, 2018       1116.010      SHEET    OF 2

BUILDING  RELATIONSHIPS ONE PROJECT AT A TIME

3301 C St, Bldg. 100-B Tel 916.341.7760
Fax 916.341.7767Sacramento, CA 95816

2



 
 
 

STAFF 
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 4C 

 
 
SUBJECT: Adoption of 2017-18 Audited Financial Statements 

 
Summary 

 
The Finance Committee met with our auditor MaryAnn Cropper of Cropper Accountancy and 
staff on November 14, 2018 to review the 2017-2018 Draft Audited Financial Statements. After 
reviewing the Financial Statements with the Auditor, the Finance Committee tentatively, 
pending further additional time to review the draft audit, recommends approval of the audited 
Financial Statements to the Board at the December meeting.  There were two recommendations 
from the auditor; one relating to developing an internal controls checklist. The second 
recommendation, developing a process with our accountant consultant to track FEMA disaster 
disbursements. Staff will develop processes for both auditor recommendations. 

 
Background 

 
The auditor, MaryAnn Cropper of Cropper Accountancy presented the draft Audited Financial 
Statements to the Finance Committee.  After review and discussion, the Committee tentatively 
recommended approval of the Financial Statements and recommend the Board approve them 
at the December meeting. 

 
A copy of the Audited Financial Statements is included in your Board packet. 

 
Recommendation 

 
Receive report from Finance Committee and move to adopt the 2017-2018 Audited Financial 
Statements. 



















































































































 
 

STAFF 
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 4D 

 
 
SUBJECT: 2019 Creek Week Sponsorship 
 
Summary 
 

The 2019 Creek Week event is scheduled for April 5-13.  For a number of years, the District has 
been a supporter and sponsor of this event offering a monetary donation of $1000 plus active 
participation by our field crew to remove and dump trash and debris collected by community 
and regional volunteers. 

 
Background 
 
Creek Week is an annual event organized by the Sacramento Creeks Council (SCC) which Alta 
Tura is the President. The event culminates in a creek clean-up day (April 13) where hundreds 
of volunteers across the region gather and remove trash and debris from area creeks and 
streams. Within Natomas, the event has included portions of the Natomas East Main Drain 
Canal, Main Drain (between Garden Highway and W. El Camino Ave), and Fisherman’s Lake 
area along our West Drain. 

 
For a number of years, the District has been a sponsor of this event providing a cash 
contribution and the services of our field crew. Our field crew has participated on the day of 
the event using our equipment to assist with the removal and loading of trash and debris from 
our area canals and streams. The request from the Sacramento Creek Council suggests a 
donation of $1000.00 plus our staff time consistent with our past participation. 

 
Being a sponsor and participating in Creek Week is consistent with our goal to improve 
community relations and recognition of the District within Natomas. Also, we are 
beneficiaries of the work done by volunteers in removing trash and debris from our canals. 

 
In addition to sponsorship, the District has issued a Temporary Use Permit to the SCC to allow 
boats with volunteers within our Main Drain to assist in the debris removal.  The permit 
requires insurance by the SCC with the District named as an additional insured. 

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board approve sponsorship of Creek Week including a donation of 
$1000.00 plus have our staff participate on the day of the event.  In addition, the District will 
issue a Temporary Use Permit allowing for boats on our Main Drain to assist with the cleanup 
effort. 









Item No. 4E  
Contribution for Current Administrative Service Manager Position 

CalPERS Retirement Benefit Discrepancy 
 

 
Summary and Background 
 
The District’s Offer Letter for the current Administrative Service Manager (ASM) 
positon indicated the CalPERS retirement benefits would be based on an existing Classic 
Member 2%@55 formula.  Subsequent to hiring, CalPERS determined the retirement 
benefit would be based on the 2%@60 formula because of the new tier adopted by Board 
in 2012 (before PEPRA).  Staff recommends the Board provide a contribution to a 457 
Savings Plan to offset the reduction in retirement benefit. Based on an actuarial analysis, 
the contribution would be 10.8 percent of compensation assuming a retirement age of 55 
and a rate of return on the contribution of 5.25% to offset the loss in retirement benefit  
 
Staff is recommending the Board approve the additional contribution described above 
and direct staff to take the necessary steps to set up the contribution to a 457 plan for the 
ASM.   The contribution would cease when the employee leaves District, retires or 
reaches the assumed retirement age of 55, whichever occurs first. 
 
Discussion 
 
As discussed above, staff is recommending the District address the discrepancy on 
retirement benefits for the current ASM position based on our offer letter (using the 
2%@55 formula) and the actual benefit (using 2%@60 formula) as required by 
CalPERS.  Per our discussion with CalPERS, the District does not have an option to 
change an employee’s CalPERS classification and any future “classic” member would be 
put into the 2%@60 category.   
 
The District hired Bartel and Associates to do a limited actuarial study to calculate the 
impact on the retirement benefit and the contribution necessary to offset this impact using 
the CalPERS assumptions for longevity for age, gender and anticipated future salary 
increases.  The financial impact and required contribution to offset the impact varies with 
the assumed age of retirement and assumed rate of return on the invested contributions.    
 
The District Personnel Committee reviewed the information from the actuarial analysis 
over several meetings and is recommending to use an assumed retirement age of 55 for 
the calculation. .Secondly, staff reviewed the actuary’s calculations of impact and 
required contributions for several assumed rates of return on the investments and is 
recommending to use 5.25% as a reasonable rate of return in calculating the required 
contribution. Staff requested the actuary run the analysis using the assumed retirement 
age of 55 and the 5.25% rate of return.   The required contribution to address the impact 
on the employee’s retirement benefit was calculated to be 10.8 % of compensation. Staff 
and the Personnel Committee are recommending the District make a lump sum 
contribution equal to 10.8 % of the actual compensation from the hire date of July 5, 



2017 through December 31, 2018.   Starting January 1, 2019, the District will make a 
direct contribution monthly to the employee’s 457 plan (via CalPERS online 
reporting/payments) for each pay period equal to the actuarial determined percent of pay 
of 10.8%.  As noted above, the additional contribution would cease when employee 
leaves District service, retires or reaches the assumed retirement age of 55.   
 
In making this recommendation, staff believes had both the District and the employee 
known the 2%@60 formula applied resulting in a reduced retirement benefit; we would 
have likely negotiated a higher initial salary to offset the reduced benefit, thus the likely 
financial impact of this recommendation on the District is minimal.   
 
 
 
 
 
 



STAFF  
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 5 

 
 

 
SUBJECT: General Manager’s Report (Information/Discussion) 
 
 
 

A. Regional Flood Control Issues  
B.   Flood Season Outlook  
C.   Corps Natomas Project update 
D. Plant 1 Spare SMUD Transformer  
E. PG&E Vegetation Management project American River Parkway 
F. Clean Up Coordination by RWQCB in NEMDC Floodway 
G. V Drain Pipe Culvert Replacement 

 



STAFF  
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 6 

 
 

 
SUBJECT: Public Outreach Update – K. Pardieck 
 
    
   

 



STAFF  
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 7 

 
 
SUBJECT: District Counsel’s Report 
 
 
This will be a verbal report by District Counsel Jim Day. 



STAFF  
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 8 

 
 

 
SUBJECT: Superintendent’s Report 
 
    
  

 



 
 
 
 
 
To: Trustees of Reclamation District No. 1000 
 
From: Superintendent Don Caldwell 
 
Date: December 1, 2018 
 
Re: Report of activities within the District during the month of November 2018 
________________________________________________________________ 
 
The chart below represents the various activities the field crew spent their time working on 
during the month of November 2018.  
 

 
RD 1000 Field Crew 

 
*Field Hours Worked 

 
Activity 

 283 Plant Maintenance 
29.5 Grounds 

119.5 Levee Maintenance 
15.5 Pump Maintenance 
11 Ditch Maintenance 
0 Fence Repair 

12 Garbage 
46 Weed Control 
8 Mowing 
0 Upper GGS 

107 Equipment Repairs 
   

*Days worked do not include: sick, vacation, holiday or Superintendent’s time  
 
 
Bannon     H: 8.80’ 
  L: 6.76’ 
 
River   H: 8.99’ 
  L: 5.01’ 
 
Rain totals  

Rain totals for the month of November were 3.62” 
Rain totals since July 1st were 5.80”  

 
Safety topics for the month of November: Wet weather driving conditions wipers and 
headlights 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
Pumping 
The district did some pumping for a small rain event in November 
 

 
Pumping Plant 

 
Pump 

 
Hours and A/F 

Plant 8 Pump # 1 47.6 hours and 499.8 A/F 
 Pump # 2 3.5 hours and 36.75 A/F 
 Pump # 3 246 hours and 934.8 A/F 
   
 Pump # 5 115.4 hours and 438.52 A/F 

Plant 3 Pump # 1 6.9 hours and 25.53 A/F 
 Pump # 3 16.5 hours and 110.55 A/F 
   

 
 
 
________________________ 
Reclamation District No. 1000  
Superintendent Don Caldwell 



STAFF  
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 9 

 
 
SUBJECT: Correspondence/News/Information 
 
 
 



STAFF 
SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS 

DECEMBER 14, 2018 
AGENDA ITEM 10 

 
 
 
SUBJECT: Closed Session 
 
  

PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT 
Title: General Manager 

 
 
 


	Packet 1
	Agenda 12-14-18
	CALL TO ORDER
	SET THE AGENDA
	ITEMS SCHEDULED FOR ACTION

	November 2018 Board Mtg Minutes ptd
	Item 2 - 1 Summary Administrative Items
	SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS

	Treasurer's Report Fiscal 2019
	July 2018 Treasurer Report
	August 2018 
	Sept 2018
	October 2018
	November 2018

	November 2018 Check Register
	Fiscal 2019 Budget To Actual Comparison
	Item 3 - 1 SUMMARY of Committee Reports
	DECEMBER 14, 2018
	AGENDA ITEM 3

	Executive Committee Minutes 12-5-18
	Finance Committe  Minutes 11-14-18 ptd
	Operation Committee Meeting Minutes 11-16-18-JFS

	Packet 2
	Item 4 - 1 SUMMARY of Committee Reports
	DECEMBER 14, 2018
	AGENDA ITEM 4

	4A Umberto Gutierrez Recognition 20 years
	4B Ron Peterson Recognition on 20 years
	4C Summary - Audit
	4D Summary - Creek Week
	SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS
	DECEMBER 14, 2018 AGENDA ITEM 4D

	Item 5 SUMMARY General MGS Report
	AGENDA ITEM 5

	Item 6 Summary Public Outreach Report
	AGENDA ITEM 6

	Item 7 Summary District Counsel Report
	DECEMBER 14, 2018
	AGENDA ITEM 7

	Item 8 Summary Superintendent's Report
	AGENDA ITEM 8

	Item 8-1 Superintendent's Report November 2018 v2
	Item 9 Summary Correspondence-News-Info
	DECEMBER 14, 2018
	AGENDA ITEM 9

	10 Closed Session Summary
	SUMMARIES & RECOMMENDATIONS


	GB_RD1000_FacilityEsmt_20181212.pdf
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-FACILITIES-20181212a.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-FACILITIES-SHEET 1
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-FACILITIES-SHEET 2
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-FACILITIES-SHEET 3
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-FACILITIES-SHEET 4
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-FACILITIES-SHEET 5
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-FACILITIES-SHEET 6
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-FACILITIES-SHEET 7



	GB_RD1000_AccessEsmt_20181212.pdf
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-ACCESS-20181212.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-ACCESS-SHEET 1
	GB_RD1000-ESMT-ACCESS-SHEET 2






